NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL

CASTLE MORPETH LOCAL AREA COUNCIL

At a meeting of the **Castle Morpeth Local Area Council** held in the Council Chamber on Monday, 12 February 2018.

PRESENT

Councillor E. Armstrong (Chair, in the Chair)

COUNCILLORS

Bawn, D.L Ledger, D.

Beynon, J.A Sanderson, H.G.H.

Dodd, R.R. Towns, D.J. Dunn, L. Wearmouth, R.

Jackson, P.A

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Bennett, Mrs L.M. Senior Democratic Services Officer

Bracken, M. Apprentice

English, D. Planning Manager (Neighbourhood

Planning and Infrastructure)

Fairs, G. Highways Development Manager

Feige, D. Principal Ecologist

Hitching, J. Senior Sustainable Drainage Officer

Marron, H. Principal Planning Officer

Masson, N. Principal Solicitor

Sinnamon, E. Senior Planning Manager Wood, T. Senior Planning Officer

99. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S. Dickinson, J.D. Foster and V. Jones.

100. MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Castle Morpeth Local Area Council held on Monday, 8 January 2018 as circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.

101. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor D. Towns declared a personal, prejudicial interest in planning application 16/04486/FUL. He left the chamber and took no part in the discussion or decision.

With regard to planning application 17/014162/FUL, Councillor R. Wearmouth declared that he had met the developer who was a constituent but had not expressed an opinion either in favour or against the proposal.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

102. DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The attached report explained how the Local Area Council was asked to decide the planning applications attached to this agenda using the powers delegated to it and included details of the public speaking arrangements. (Report attached to the signed minutes as **Appendix A**)

RESOLVED that the report be noted

103. 16/04486/FUL

Detailed planning proposal for 53 residential dwellings and associated infrastructure

Land North Of The Garth, Pottery Bank, Morpeth, Northumberland. (Report attached to the signed minutes as Appendix 1)

Haley Marron, Principal Planning Officer, introduced the application and provided a brief overview. She updated Members as follows:-

- A Members' site visit was undertaken on 8th February 2018.
- Two additional letters of objections had been received from local residents, however, no new issues were raised in addition to those already set out in the report.
- Minor revisions to the wording of condition 2 were required to ensure that the approved plans/document list was correct.
- There was duplication between landscaping conditions 4 and 21. These
 conditions related to the planting of the buffer zones with Cotting Burn. It
 was proposed that condition 4 be deleted and that condition 21 be
 amended to include correct drawing numbers.
- An additional landscaping condition was required for the rest of the development.
- Minor revision was required to condition 22 to ensure that parking relating to the particular dwelling was implemented prior to occupation.

Maureen Davison spoke in objection to the application, and her key points were:

- There would be pollution and noise from static vehicles at the traffic lights. There should be independent traffic analysis.
- Close proximity of SUDs basins and concerns regarding standing water and accumulated water effect on the shifting sand geology and drainage issues. An independent assessment was required.
- There were privacy and security concerns. A zone was allocated for dog walking and play. The area was unsuitable for unsupervised youngsters to play due to the proximity to a busy road.
- Massing and the identikit design of the development would ruin the area.
 If development was inevitable then it should be less dense.
- Multiple additional journeys would be created with approximately two cars per house in the new development.
- The sewers were already not coping and the development would just compound the problem.
- The Conservation Area and Listed Buildings in Morpeth were worthy of better treatment.
- The development was contrary to the new Neighbourhood Plan which had legal weight.

Councillor Andrew Tebbutt (Morpeth Town Council) spoke in the local member slot and his main points were:-

- Morpeth Town Council objected on a number of grounds.
- Much hard work had gone into producing the Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan and it should be the blueprint for identifying suitable development sites in Morpeth.
- This site had always had outstanding environmental quality although was looking neglected since being identified by a developer.
- The site was never intended for this type of development. The SHLAA information which helped inform the Neighbourhood Plan envisaged maximum of 40 houses.
- A neighbouring site was approved for 39 houses and this, along with 53 on this site, represented more than twice the SHLAA assessment. This was not consistent with the Neighbourhood Plan.
- Morpeth was close to 80% overdevelopment. There were already over 3,000 approved houses for Morpeth. Development was slowing down as houses were not selling.
- The installation of traffic lights at the entrance to the estate would not improve traffic flow. A roundabout would be better for traffic flow.

Samuel Kenny (agent) then spoke in support of the application, and his key points were:

- The development was within the settlement boundary of Morpeth and not protected land.
- The NPPF supported the site.

- The development reflected the SHLAA. Of the 6 hectares, only 2.25 hectares would be developed with the rest being landscaped. There would be nine dwellings per hectare.
- Affordable housing would be provided.
- SUDS would provide on site attenuation for surface water eminating within the development.
- There would be significant landscaping
- The development reflected the character of other properties in the area.
- No harm would be caused to the Conservation Area
- There was no specific ecological designation on this site.
- Highways had sufficient capacity.

Members asked questions to officers and the key points from responses were:

- There was no clear definition of the meaning of 'severe' in the phrase 'severe residual cumulative impacts'. The trip rate indicated an additional 26 vehicle movements out in the morning peak hour at the future 2032 assessment year. Trips would split left and right at the junction, those travelling towards Morpeth diluting on the highway network such that there would be no material impact at junctions remote from the site.
- There was no housing allocation on this site in the Neighbourhood Plan or Castle Morpeth Local Plan. However, it was located within the defined settlement limits in both plans.
- The SHLAA was an information tool for policy officers only and not actual policy.
- The Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan did not identify this site for housing but it did not mean that the proposal was contrary to the plan.
- There was a 6.5 year housing supply but this should not be seen as a ceiling. This should not be used as a reason for refusal.
- Planning applications were usually accompanied by assessments but they were not independently verified as Northumberland County Council had its own experts who were able to advise.
- The proposal had been scrutinised by principal engineers in the Highways Development Management Team. 53 properties was quite a small number in the context of a residential development. A full Transport Assessment was usually only required for developments of over 80 properties. This proposal was borderline for necessitating a Transport Statement, generally required for more than around 50 dwellings. The design of the signal junction reflected the findings of a road safety audit. Traffic signals tended to assist pedestrians and cyclists crossing more than would a roundabout.
- Each planning application had to be considered on its own merits and the transport statement considered committed development and effects of the Morpeth Northern Bypass. If traffic impact was to be used as a reason for refusal, then evidence would be needed of the harm that would be caused by the predicted number of vehicle trips.
- It was not known why the original proposal for a roundabout had been replaced by traffic lights. Reference was made to an appeal decision

elsewhere in the country where an Inspector had granted permission for a development accessed via a signalised junction on a section of dual carriageway subject to a 70 m.p.h. speed limit.

- Loss of amenity was not a strong reason for refusal.
- The applicant was not required to show why a particular type of junction had been chosen. It was probable that a simple priority junction could not be provided due to the location of an existing junction opposite and the position on the inside of a bend.
- The Environment Agency had been consulted and were satisified with the proposals. the works would not impact upon the Cotting Burn and the newly installed dam / flood alleviation scheme.
- Water flood risk assessment had been carried out and flows from the site into the Cotting Burn would be the same as greenfield runoff rates.
- Two SUDS basins were proposed, which would provide the necessary attenuation on site.
- A condition had been requested relating to groundwater.
- Natural England provided advice on ecological effects. There should be
 a 15 m buffer between dwellings and ancient woodland. This had been
 tested and upheld at appeal. Overall, there were no ecological
 objections but conditions would be required.
- There was not believed to be a significant effect on red squirrels.

Councillor H.G.H. Sanderson then moved deferral of the application to allow an independent cumulative impact traffic survey to be undertaken. There was no seconder to this motion and so the motion fell.

Councillor D. Bawn, seconded by Councillor J. Beynon, moved refusal of the application on the following grounds:-

- Impact on traffic had not been properly assessed.
- The area was not designated for housing in the Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan and there was a 5 year housing supply.
- Impinged on a wildlife corridor.
- Flooding impact
- Affect on amenity from massing and height differentials

Debate then followed and the key points from members were:

- The development could look like a castle overlooking houses at Pottery Court.
- Traffic lights at the junction seemed to be over the top for this development.
- It was not possible to 'buy a view' and this was not a planning consideration.
- A roundabout would be better than the proposed traffic lights.
- There appeared to be not many houses considering the level of ecological damage that would be caused. Nothing much was being gained.
- There would be an effect on the red squirrel population.

- There were a number of potential flooding problems and more alleviation works would be required. On a nearby estate at Lancaster Park, there was a lot of standing water.
- If there was flooding and further alleviation works were required, who would pay for them?

On being put to the vote, it was agreed by 6 votes for to 3 against with 0 abstentions, that it be

RESOLVED that the application be **REFUSED** on the following grounds:-

- Insufficient information had been submitted to assess whether the development would not have a severe residual cumulative impact on the highway network. The development was, therefore, contrary to the NPPF (2012).
- The site was not a designated site for housing development and was, therefore, contrary to the Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan (May 2016).
- Insufficient information had been submitted to fully demonstrate that the
 development would not increase the risks of flooding. The development
 was, therefore, contrary to the NPPF and Policy Inf1 Flooding and
 Sustainable Drainage of the Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan (May 2016).
- The proposed development by virtue of its design, height and massing, would have an adverse impact on the amenity of residents at Pottery Bank Court, contrary to the NPPF, Castle Morpeth Local Plan Saved Policy H15 (2003, Saved Policies 2007) and Policy Des1 of the Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan (May 2016).

104. 17/04162/FUL

Erection of 6 bungalows (C3 use)
Land South Of Furrow Grove, Station Road, Stannington,
Northumberland. (Report attached to the signed minutes as Appendix 2)

Tamsin Wood, Senior Planning Officer, introduced the application and provided a brief overview.

Councillor Karen Carins (Stannington Parish Council) spoke in the local member slot and her main points were:-

- Stannington Parish Council and neighbouring residents supported the application and no objections had been received.
- Residents in phase 1 of the development had already integrated well into the community.
- There was a need for bungalows across the county and the design of the bungalows is in keeping with surrounding properties.
- The site was previously a commercial site and previous uses often posed a nuisance and eyesore.
- The overall appearance sat well on the road and took account of the Stannington Neighbourhood Plan.

- The design of the site allowed a sense of openess and the rural feel of the area to remain intact.
- As the development may be situated within the proposed INSET boundary for Stannington Station it was likely that this land would be developed at some point.

Victoria Fleming (applicant) then spoke in support of the application and her key points were:

- The applicants were a small family run business creating jobs by using local tradespeople and sourcing materials from local business where possible.
- There was a significant demand for bungalows in Northumberland and the company's previous development had an immediate take up.
- No objections had been received and support had been shown from residents of neighbouring properties, other local residents and adjacent parishes.
- The design, scale and massing of the bungalows had taken cues from the existing dwellings on Station Road.
- The proposal was compliant with national and local policy including the draft Stannington Neighbourhood Plan.

There were no questions for officers.

Councillor R.R. Dodd then moved the officer recommendation to grant the application. This was seconded by Councillor D. Bawn.

Debate then followed and the key points from members were:

- The development was consistent with surrounding properties.
- It was a highly sustainable site and the development had a lot of local support.
- There was a shortage of bungalows in the county and this development should be applauded.

On being put to the vote, it was agreed unanimously that it be

RESOLVED that the application be **GRANTED** for the reasons and with the conditions as outlined in the report.

105. PLANNING APPEALS

Members received a report informing them of progress of planning appeals. This report would be supplied monthy.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

OTHER LOCAL AREA COUNCIL BUSINESS

On the conclusion of the development control business at 5.40 pm, the meeting adjourned as the remainder of the agenda consisted of other Local Area Council business scheduled to begin at 6pm.

106. COMMUNITY CHEST AWARDS

Councillor J. Beynon, Chair of the Community Chest Grant Panel, presented a certificate to representatives of local organisations who had received funding from the community chest scheme. He thanked them all for their hard work.

107. REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR FOR LOCAL SERVICES

Local Transport Plan Programme 2018-19

Members received details of the draft Local Transport Plan (LTP) programme for 2018-19 for consideration and comment by the Local Area Council prior to final approval of the programme. (Report attached to the signed minutes as Appendix B).

Councillor H.G.H. Sanderson explained that a different approach had been taken to the LTP for 2018/19. Points raised included:-

- Funding for safety schemes had increased from £220,000 to £330,000.
- £200,000 had been allocated to Highways Area Managers for general carriageway and drainage repairs.
- Funding for rural road improvements would increase by 10%.
- There was a very serious pothole problem in the County and £420,000 had been funded from contingencies to enable repairs to be made. This was in addition to £930,000 from Government. It was planned to do repairs in a very sustainable way and that they should last at least 10 years.
- All Members and Parishes would be contacted explaining which schemes had been successful and which would be reserve schemes.
- Any drainage issues should firstly be raised with the Area Highways
 Managers who would liase with the Head of Technical Services and work
 organised on a priority basis.
- Work on schemes would commence as soon as possible in the new financial year.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

108. REPORT OF HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES

Stannington and Longhorsley Neighbourhood Plans

Members were requested to note the content of the Submission Drafts of both the Stannington and the Longhorsley Neighbourhood Plans which would shortly be undergoing Independent Examination. (Report attached to the signed minutes as Appendix C).

David English, Planning Manager (Neighbourhood Planning and Infrastructure), explained that, at this stage of the process, Northumberland County Council's role was administrative. It was required to publicise the plans and invite comments, notify consultation bodies and appoint an Independent Examiner (with the agreement of the appropriate Parish Council). This had been done in both cases and the publicity period for Stannington expired on 9 February 2018, and Longhorsely would expire on 16 February 2018. Some final comments had been submitted to the Examiner for both plans. Support had been received for the drainage and sustainable travel policies in both Plans and an objection from Strategic Estates to the designation of school fields as Local Green Space in the Longhorsley Neighbourhood Plan. Subject to accepting any changes recommended by the Examiner, the Plans will then be put to local referendum.

Members commented on the significant amount of time that had been spent voluntarily by Parish Councils on the preparation of the plans. The plans did lead to a great understanding of how the planning system worked.

RESOLVED that the content of the submission drafts of both the Stannington and Longhorsley Neighbourhood Plans be noted.

109. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on Monday, 12 March 2018, at 4.00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, County Hall, Morpeth.

CHAIRMAN	• • • • •
DATE	